MINUTES
of the
PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON
APRIL 25, 2012

THE COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI, STATE OF HAWAII, CONVENED A PUBLIC
HEARING ON WEDNESDAY, APRIL 25, 2012 AT 6:03 P.M., WITH CHAIR DENNIS A.
MATEO PRESIDING FOR THE PURPOSE OF RECEIVING TESTIMONY ON THE
PROPOSED OPERATING BUDGET AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2012 TO JUNE 30, 2013.
CHAIR MATEO: Council of the County of Maui public hearing for April 25, 2012 will come to
order.
Mr. Clerk, may we have the roll call please.

ROLL CALL
PRESENT: COUNCILMEMBERS GLADYS C. BAISA, ROBERT CARROLL,
ELEANORA COCHRAN, DONALD G. COUCH JR.,
G. RIKI HOKAMA, MICHAEL P. VICTORINO, MICHAEL B.
WHITE, VICE-CHAIR JOSEPH PONTANILLA, AND
CHAIR DENNIS A. MATEO.
EXCUSED: NONE.
There were approximately 75 members of the public in attendance.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK LANCE TAGUCHI: Chairman, there are nine Members present,
a quorum is present to conduct the business of the Council.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Good evening everyone and thank you for being here this
evening.
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In accordance with Section 9-4 of the Revised Charter of the County of Maui, (1983),
As Amended, the public is invited to provide comment before the Council of the
County of Maui regarding the proposed Operating Budget for the Fiscal Year
July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013, as well as the Capital Program as submitted by the
Mayor to the Council of the County of Maui pursuant to Section 9-2 of the Revised
Charter of the County of Maui.
We remind everyone wanting to provide testimony this evening that you need to sign
your testimony sheets that can be found at the door, the doorway out in the back.
Please stop by the table and fill out your forms.
For those of you that had already signed up to provide testimony to the Council this
morning, this evening, excuse me, you will be provided three minutes to provide your
testimony. If additional time is needed, you will be provided with an additional minute
to conclude.
When your name is called, please advance to the podium, state your name clearly for
the record. If you represent a group or organization, please so state the name of the
group or organization as well.
A lighting system on the podium is there to assist you with your testimony. At the
start of your comments, the green light will be lit. At the two minute thirty second
mark the yellow light will be lit. The red light will be lit at the three minute mark at
which time you will need to conclude.
And for those of us with cell phones or other noise making devices, this would be a
good time to please turn them off or set them on the silent mode.
Mr. Clerk, has the public hearing been duly noted?
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Chairman, notice of this public hearing on the Mayor's
Proposed Operating Budget for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2012 [sic],
and the Capital Program, was published in the April 10, 2012 and April 18, 2012
editions of the Maui News.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Go ahead and call up our first testifier.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The first person to testify is Joseph Mukini, followed by
Shannon Rowe.
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TESTIMONY
MR. JOSEPH MUKINI, MAUI HIGH SCHOOL AUTOMOTIVE PROGRAM:
Hello. My name is Joseph Mukini. This is Banny Yaunos and Xerxes Anatalio. We
represent Maui High School Automotive's Program. First of all, we'd like to thank you
guys for supporting us and we hope you guys continue to support us.
For us there's nothing better than fixing cars, having a car come in with a problem,
taking it, diagnosing the problem, and fixing the car and seeing it leave. We get to
see the fruit of our labor and we can use anything and everything that we use in that
class as an experience in life.
So throughout the past two years, we've been in this class and, for me, it's my
favorite class. I'm one of the students where I'm not the greatest at making a speech
or typing out papers and making homework being finished. So for me, having handson work in class would, is actually really better for me. So, in that class I feel like I
know what I'm doing. It's more than writing for me to do. I have a easier time doing
hands-on work. So basically that class, maybe like PE, but for me, having this
opportunity to work on cars is very generous, for me.
The program is really great. I love it and there's nothing more I can really say about
that. I want to, I thank you guys again for the support of the Automotive's Program
and with that I'd like to conclude.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much.
MR. MUKINI: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, questions for the testifier?
Go ahead, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Joseph.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Joseph, if you can hang on for just a second.
MR. MUKINI: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How long have you been in the program?
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MR. MUKINI: Two years now.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And do you think this is going to lead you to a career in auto
mechanics?
MR. MUKINI: I believe yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Very good. We need mechanics. We all have cars. Thank
you.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, additional questions?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Joseph, what, what, what grade are you?
MR. MUKINI: I'm a senior this year.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you plan to go to a college that will provide you more
training?
MR. MUKINI: Yes. I'm planning to go to Wyoming Tech in California.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I, I, I know former students have gone on to
different universities to enhance their education in regards to automotive program.
So proud of you guys, thank you.
MR. MUKINI: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, further questions? Thank you very much, Joseph.
MR. MUKINI: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person, next person to testify, Shannon Rowe, followed
by Lyn McNeff.

MR. SHANNON ROWE, MAUI HIGH SCHOOL AUTOMOTIVE PROGRAM:
Good evening, Councilmembers, Council Chair. I represent Maui High School Auto
Shop. My name is Shannon Rowe. I'm the instructor and those are my students and
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I'm very proud of them. They, they were really scared to come up here but, you
know, they came up here anyway and just made me feel really good about what I do.

Yeah, I'd like to thank all of you for, you know, your support throughout these years.
And what I just, you know, kind of sunk in little while ago when I talked to the
students when they were asking me about oh, what are we going to say. I, I told
them that, you know, without your guys support from the community and the County,
our program, it wouldn't be there, it would be done, it would be over. And that really
just sank in for me, like hit me little while ago. I was like wow, you know. What you
guys do is really important. And I, I just can't thank you guys enough.
So, I, I really feel that these kids they learn something that they don't get in other
classes. We get to teach them what it's like in the real world, what it's going to be like
when they, when they leave school. And it's something that, you know, you cannot
really teach in a classroom. They just have to experience it for themselves. And it's
something that is so valuable, especially for the ones that, you know, they don't plan
on going to a university. So it gives them something to look forward to, something to,
you know, a goal that they can accomplish. And for a lot of them, other than that,
they really don't have many other options because either financially or, you know,
they, they didn't plan ahead, they didn't take the right courses.
So it's really important and I just hope that you guys continue to support and, you
know, I, I, I don't, I don't envy the choices that you guys have to make tonight. I know
it's going to be really hard, but please consider us. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, need-Go ahead, Mr. Victorino, followed by Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Shannon, thank you very much and good to
see you again. Shannon, I read in the paper where King Kekaulike just won and you
were leading them also. So, how many hats do you wear?
MR. ROWE: Well, I wasn't leading them. But, you know, we, we're a small community,
especially in the automotive area. So we all know each other, we all help each other
out. Every, you know, I would say 95% of the mechanics out there either went to
Maui High or they know of Maui High. So we all connected somehow. So you know,
it's a victory for the whole island.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. No, and congratulations, Shannon. And, I've, I
watched you through the years develop into a pretty productive young man from
those baseball days. So congratulations. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.

Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Shannon, for being here
this evening. Just a question, for the, for the people who graduate from what you
teach them, what more do they have to do to become certified auto techs?
MR. ROWE: Well, you know, there's all different options for them. Some of them can go
right into the work force if an employer is ready and willing to hire them and they can
train on the job. And, you know, the certifications that come with the career, it's, it's
on your own. There's no, nothing set in stone. So, you know, the ones that go to
tech school they have an advantage because when they come to apply for a job, you
know, they, they can present that, you know, I have this training. So it puts them in a
slight advantage. But then again the community is small so a lot of people, you
know, they have relatives who work and they're willing to give their relatives a shot.
So, I mean, any of the places that they choose to go, whether it be over here at
UHMC or in the mainland, you know, they're going to learn the same basic
knowledge and then after that, it's up to them.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it's possible that if they couldn't go on, they could still get a
job and then learn as they work?
MR. ROWE: Definitely. A lot of them do that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Terrific. That's a really good advantage for our kids.
MR. ROWE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MR. ROWE: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Further questions?
Ms., go ahead, Mr., Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Shannon, for being here.
You know, in looking at the results from the last one, you had King Kekaulike, then
you guys, and also Lahainaluna. So are those new programs in those schools or, or
have they always had those programs?
MR. ROWE: Well, Lahainaluna has been a strong program for a long time. They have a
really good instructor, he, he's committed. King Kekaulike, they've had problems with
staffing with the automotive program. I mean, a lot of schools have that problem.
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You know, we wouldn't have it at Maui High if not for the help of the Council. Their
teacher is actually not really a automotive instructor. He's a long-term substitute.
The teacher that they had in that position recently left and, you know, so he was
getting a lot of help from the community and from, you know, former students and
stuff like that, so they, they found success that way.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So the question then I have is that would you be supportive
of us trying to helping all those?
MR. ROWE: Of course.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It may. Well, it might mean a lower level possibly for you, so
it can be spread out. Would you be supportive of that?
MR. ROWE: Definitely. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch.
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Shannon, how many instructors so far, two or
three?
(Councilmember Victorino was excused from the public hearing at 6:15 p.m.)
MR. ROWE: How many instructors?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, do we have, you know, providing this training or
instructions in the automotive program for the three different high schools?
MR. ROWE: Well, full-time, as far as full-time instructors, I believe Lahainaluna and Maui
High School, we're fortunate to have two. And I'm not sure if Baldwin's instructor is
versed in automotive or if he's someone who just has experience as, like let's say
carpentry, and is filling up an automotive position.
The, the career education in our, in our high schools is, is really kind of taking a back
seat to academics, especially you know with schools having to qualify for state
assessment and, and, you know, it's not the focus. So, a lot of the effort comes from
private, like County help or MEDB or just people from industry. Like MCC has a
program that helps out woodshop. So, it's, we really depend for the career pathways
on the community.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, thank you. And, and, you know, when they started the
automotive program at Maui, to continue the program at Maui High School, at the
time, you know, we made a conscious decision to support Maui High School in their
automotive program because of the results. And sometimes we take, you know, we
look at the, the type of funding that we provide, especially to MEDB.
And I, I want to thank MEDB for taking over this program, you know, keeping it going.
You know, we, we look at technology, sometimes we forget about the trades. And,
and you know, trades are also important in, in the workforce here in Maui County.
So, thank you for, you know, your diligence in staying at Maui High School and, and
hopefully come next year, Maui High School will be on top again.
MR. ROWE: Thank you for championing that for us.
(Councilmember Victorino returned to the public hearing at 6:17 p.m.)
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. And, and, I, I'd like to offer my congratulations.
MR. ROWE: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Maui High should, should really be proud. Actually, you know, it was Maui
High who helped blaze the trail in the increase in standards and you really need to be
commended for that. And your own student, Mr., young Mr. Mukini, who, who came
up here and said he was nervous and not, not able to speak very well did an
exceptional job in getting your thoughts and your emotions and your sentiments
across. So, it's not only fixing cars, it's the ability to involve them in, in part of civic
duty as well. So, thank you very much.
Any questions? Any further questions? Thank you, Mr. Rowe.
MR. ROWE: Thank you.

CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: The next person to testify is Lyn McNeff, followed by Jamie
Hirano.
MS. LYN McNEFF, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC.:
Good evening, Council Chair and Councilmembers. Yesterday in the grants review
there was a question about the BEST Program and the recidivism rate and so I
decided to look it up so we could answer that question and I have a paper for you.
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The national recidivism rate is 43.3%. Of course Hawaii is not included in that.
There are, I believe, it's only 41 states that are included in that, I don't know why
Hawaii isn't included. The State recidivism rate is 50.9%. The County of Maui, they
break it down into probation, 54.8; parole is 34.5; and the Department of Public
Safety is 36.7.
We have 175 clients from July 1, 2010 to
MEO's recidivism rate is 2%.
Of those, 104 have been released, which means that its
March 31, 2012.
2% recidivism rate. So thank you for allowing me to do this and be proud of the
BEST Program because it does serve a good purpose in this community. And thank
you for supporting it and your hard work as Councilmembers.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: I'm going to start with Ms. Baisa, followed by Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Ms. McNeff for being here
this evening. You said 2%?
MS. McNEFF: Two percent.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, that sounds pretty good to me.
MS. McNEFF: Two out of 104.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's amazing.
MS. McNEFF: It is-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
MS. McNEFF: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That, that tells me a lot. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly. If we had more money, which you know is
not that easy, but if we had more money would you be able to serve more of these--
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MS. McNEFF: Of course we're limited by the number of Case Managers that can handle
them and of course it's intense case management because its whole, holistic
approach are removing the barriers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, and there's no other funding from the State or any
other outside sources.
MS. McNEFF: We are applying for Federal funds, we're applying all over. So hopefully
we'll get some but currently.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But at this time only the County of Maui?
MS. McNEFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Ms. McNeff.
MS. McNEFF: And you also do have a letter from Mr. Sylva, an employer of the BEST, of
. . . , so thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If we could have a copy of that, Mr. Chair.
MS. McNEFF: You do have a copy, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, you do. Oh, I'm sorry. Okay, I apologize. Thank
you, Mr. Chair.
MS. McNEFF: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Members, further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Questions. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Ms. McNeff-MS. McNEFF: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --for the additional information with the BEST Program.
As you know I was a mentoree of the program-MS. McNEFF: Yes, you were. Thank you for doing that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and it is an excellent thing So at this point are you short
Case Managers right now?
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MS. McNEFF: No, we, we have what we can serve. I mean we can serve more if we had
more Case Managers. It's, It's in any program where you have Case Managers that
can only handle so many and do a good job of it. So you're removing a lot of barriers
for people who are coming out of the facility. So, you know, you have employment,
you have housing, you have clothing, you have transportation, you have many
barriers to help remove, so the more you have, the less you can holistically serve.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you.
MS. McNEFF: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Further questions, Members? Thank you, Ms. McNeff.
MS. McNEFF: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Jamie [sic] Hirano, followed by Brian
Cade.

MR. JAMES HIRANO, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC. BEST PROGRAM:
Hi, good evening. I'm James Hirano, I work for the Maui Community Correctional
Center. I'm the Warden there and I've worked with the BEST Program for many,
many, many years. We actually started it with Councilwoman Gladys Baisa and have
continued to collaborate and work together towards a goal of reintegrating people
back into our community.
I can emphasize how important it is, you've heard the numbers, all that sort of thing.
But what comes to my mind and, and strikes home to me is a story I can share with
you. Basically, I ran into, I was going to the emergency room with a friend and I
walked in there and first thing I see, I hear is, "Oh, Mr. Hirano". You know, it happens
to me a lot, okay, but that's the first thing that happened. And I looked at this young
person and we started talking. And he told me his name, refreshed my memory, and
he mentioned to me that he was currently driving a bus with a CDL. He had gotten
the CDL through the MEO Program and then worked for MEO for two years, helped
them back, you know helped them back.
He was currently with his current employment for about four and a half years and
driving a big bus with the tourists, you know, and they go up to the mountain and
everywhere else. What I found pretty amazing was he was telling me that in his
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particular company, once they reach a five year mark, he can take his whole family
with him and go on a cruise because you were affiliated with the travel. Yeah, real
amazing.
And it all started though through the BEST Program and the MEO services that are
offered. So, this is one person that I had forgotten. You know I hadn't seen him for
six and a half years, totally forgotten, forgotten the name and everything.
Another example I want to bring up is the very next day, I ran into somebody standing
behind this person in a bank. You know, so I run into people all the time. This
person now currently works for the DOT, State. So these are all people and
examples that the monies that are going to be used to support this program have
very real impacts, not only to them personally, but to their families and to our
community. You know, these become taxpayers, they really do.
And so I can't over emphasize the importance of the BEST Program. And I do want
to thank everyone on the County Council for giving so much support throughout all
these years to programs just like this, very important. So, I appreciate the time and
thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Hirano, for your support of
this program. One of the things I've missed through this, all of our community
meetings is hearing from the participants of the BEST Program because what, what
was very clear last year, one of the reasons I, I think this is such a great program, is
that you can tell that these guys have had hard times but they're so appreciative of
the feeling that somebody is reaching out to them and saying we're willing to forget
what you did and we're willing to help you get someplace that you'll be more
productive and happier. So, I take my hat off to those that, that have organized this
program over the years and I want to thank you for what you do to make it happen.
MR. HIRANO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Hirano, for
being here this evening. It's very good to hear this coming from the Warden of our
local facility. You know, there is, there, there seems to be something really wonderful
and that is this cooperation. You know, you run the facility but you're more than
welcome to the folks that go there to try to help. This program would not work
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without a very cooperative arrangement between you and, and the people that come
to work there. And I'm sensing that you welcome that kind of community
volunteerism and programming in your facility. Is that correct?
MR. HIRANO: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that you're more than willing to cooperate, because you
can't do all of this?
MR. HIRANO: No one can. No one can.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, well, you know we talk about programming a lot. You
know, we're talking about the new facility that we're talking about, and for me it's
really important that we not only house people, but that we give them the tools to
change their lives so that when they come out they don't go back. And listening to
Ms. McNeff, tells me that there's something really good going on. So I want to thank
you.
MR. HIRANO: It looks bright. It looks much brighter and I'll tell you something if I don't, if
you don't mind?
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
MR. HIRANO: Is that, in Maui, is one of the few places in the State that we work at this kind
of cooperative level. I don't care where else you want to go. Everybody got their
problems, don't get me wrong, including us; however, we keep trying and persevering
and we do accomplish.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank.
MR. HIRANO: So the money here is well spent.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
MR. HIRANO: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Members-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Hirano.
CHAIR MATEO: --any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Mr. Hirano. Thank you again and, and thank you
for all your help, and, you know, thank you for the fair and everything else you guys
participate and help us with.
Is there any reason that the State doesn't contribute to this program? You know, I, I'd
like to know. Is there a reason why, beyond not having money? I mean, all these
years they haven't contributed, so why, why haven't they? Because I would think it
would be in their best interest so people don't return, you know. Has that question
ever been raised by you or by any in the, in the administration part?
MR. HIRANO: Well, it's a great question, very complex one. Has to do a lot with finances
as you well know. A lot with revenue streams that come to the State as you well
know. Also has to do with hiring personnel that are appropriate to support the
infrastructure that is currently there. Just for an example, my current staffing is down
to about sixty some odd percent. You know, and if you can imagine we run a
business if you will that has to do with life and death, you know, one of the days that
is a good day is when we don't have an escape and nobody dies. You know, that's a
reality for us. So, when we're running at that level, to answer your question, I'm
sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Yeah, no, no, no. Yeah, I-MR. HIRANO: So.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I'm just sorry. Okay I, I didn't mean to put you on
the spot.
MR. HIRANO: Oh no, no. That's okay, I don't mind I'm always on the spot.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I, and, and, and I'm sorry to hear that 60%, so you
talking if you needed a 100 people, you only have 60 actually working for you right
now. Is that what you're referring to?
MR. HIRANO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wow. Okay, thank you, I appreciate it. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Ms. Baisa, quickly.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair. Thank you. Yeah, while we have the Warden, we were
discussing the other day in the Budget, the Workline Program.
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MR. HIRANO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: There seems to be still a lingering feeling that the reason why
we can't do more is cause we don't have enough ACO's to accompany the worklines.
Can you tell us a little bit, quickly, before the Chair gets mad at me?
MR. HIRANO: Well, that's part of the reason for sure, is that we do not have enough staff
that we're allocating. When we allocate for the worklines, we're actually taking away
from internal security. So those two bodies that we put out there, you know, we take
away from our own people that we're, we're having to work side by side to work with
the people that are incarcerated.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So that is a factor?
MR. HIRANO: That is a factor, definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, okay. Thank you very much.
MR. HIRANO: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, further questions? Thank you, Mr. Hirano.
MR. HIRANO: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk, next testifier please.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person Brian Cade, followed by Mike Morris.

MR. BRIAN CADE, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC. BEST PROGRAM:
Good evening. My name is Brian Cade, I'm the Offender Services Administrator at
MCCC. Mr. Hirano is my, my direct supervisor, my boss. In support of the MEO
BEST Program, we've employed, we've enjoyed many good years with them, you
know a really positive relationship.
I have, in my job, I have the unique opportunity to speak to a lot of inmates in a group
setting. Just this past Monday night, we had a graduation of one of our substance
abuse programs, Continuing Care, and often talk about the team concept that even
though you may think you are alone, there's always somebody out there that can
support you. Nobody wins, nobody succeeds without somebody else supporting you.
We employ that with MEO BEST, you know, in, in large measure.
Two cases I can relate to. One case, many years ago, this particular inmate came in,
part of the MEO BEST Program. Through that program and MEO's assistance, she
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was able to get a job at a, with the Culinary Arts area, arena, learning how to be a
cook. She went to school at UH Maui Campus in the Culinary Arts Program,
graduated from that program. This is an, over many years, still working, going to
class, and being incarcerated. She's now working as a Chef in one of the resorts
here on the island.
Another case. This particular inmate, also MEO BEST client was, became employed
through the Work Furlough Program, now on parole. But even with that, she now
comes into the facility to provide, as a guest speaker for AA, AA meetings, Alcoholics
Anonymous meetings, on a periodic basis and makes a very profound impact
because of what she had been through.
Two distinct cases, two distinct people, common denominator is that the MEO BEST
Program was part of their team, part of their support system and network to help
them succeed.
I firmly believe in this program, MEO BEST, and I work directly with them, the Case
Manager's and the people with MEO BEST and I welcome the opportunity to be a
part of that team. Thank you guys for your continued support and that's all I've got.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you very much,
Mr. Cade.
MR. CADE: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk, next testifier.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Mike Morris, followed by Rosemarie
Sialana.

MR. MIKE MORRIS, NUTRITION AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY COALITION OF MAUI
COUNTY:
Good evening, Councilmembers, Chair, thank you. Most of you know me as the
Director of the YMCA, but tonight I am here as the Chair of NPAC, Nutrition and
Physical Activity Coalition. And I'm here to request support in the matching funds for
the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation Roadmaps to Health grant.
We have this opportunity here to apply for a $200,000 grant. Part of the grant
process is that we have to have matching funds for that grant so we're asking the
County for 70,000 in matching funds. Eventually we'll have 400,000 when we match
the entire grant. So for you financial guys that's over a five to one return on your
investment, which is a good deal.
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Our Pioneering Healthy Communities team, which includes: the Mayor,
Councilmember Don Couch, Charlene Shibuya, Will Spence, David Goode, Dan
Goodfellow, Wes Lo, myself, Sandy McGuinness, Bill Medeiros, Bruce Anderson; we
will be the advisors to that grant process.

The grant itself will help in developing complete streets, in doing training, doing
design work, and doing implemene, implen, implementing the complete streets
program in our County. So, I respectively ask for a $70,000 investment in helping us
match this $200,000 grant. Thank you for your consideration. I do have written
testimony where you can find my contact information on there if you have questions.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Ms. Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Chair. And thank you, Mike, for being here.
Mike, is this $70,000 request in the budget, tucked away in some pot, or is it an
addition that has to be put in?
MR. MORRIS: I'm not real sure, Gladys. I talked to the Mayor just, just before we came in
this room and he, I, I asked him that very question, where would this money come
from. And he said, that's not your problem, to me. So, I, I'm not exactly sure where
the money is coming from. I, I think it's a budget matter for either Sandy or this
Council, I'm not sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, we'll check it out.
MR. MORRIS: Okay great, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But, I, I haven't run into it yet, so I'm concerned. Thank you.
MR. MORRIS: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, further questions? Thank you very much, Mr. Morris.
MR. MORRIS: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Rosemarie Sialana, followed by Dawn
Kaalake.
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MS. ROSEMARIE SIALANA, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC.:
Good, good evening. I'm, I'm speaking for MEO bus transportation. I really need
them a lot because I can't go anywhere without them. I need them. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you very much.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Dawn Kaalake, followed by Ryan Ching.

MS. DAWN KAALAKEA, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC.:
Hi, my name is Dawn Kaalakea. I'm, I'm here in behalf of MEO Transportation and I
just want to say that, something new for me right here but, I, I'm recently moved from
Honolulu, I've been here for three years, and I never did drive in all my life, never
drove a car or anything.
And in Honolulu, where I live, the buses are so accessible to me cause I could just
jump on the bus and it would take, the bus would take me all over any, anywhere and
you know we had bus passes and we had, what you call, discounts for senior citizen.
So when my son wanted me to move to Maui, it was kind of, one of the, one of the
reason why I didn't want to move was because of transportation, cause I know at the
time didn't have any buses, but now I see that they do have bus.
But a year ago I applied for MEO and I, I was approved and now I could catch the
MEO bus so I can go to the doctors, I can go shopping, and now, you know I, I love it
here on Maui now, you know. Although the prices are expensive but I have
transportation. I don't have to depend on my son, my children, I can be independent
again. Cause in Honolulu I could do everything myself because not driving. I'm
going to be 67 years old and I'm really, I'm blessed to be in Maui and to have the
MEO Transportation that I, that can take me wherever I want to go. Especially
Christmas, I did shopping on the MEO, I mean that was great, you know.
So I, I think this program is really, really helpful. I met a, a lot of people in Maui, on
the bus, and we became good friends. And I think, I want to thank all of you for
having this MEO Transportation. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you very much.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Ryan Ching, followed by Lloyd Fischel.
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MR. RYAN CHING, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC.:
Aloha. My name is Ryan Ching. I'm speaking on behalf of the MEO Transportation.
I'd just like to say that if it wasn't for the transportation bus, I would still be in a
wheelchair. And I just want to thank MEO for helping me out cause I was, I had a
stroke July last year and I was, I was in a wheelchair for at least four months. But
because they bring me to my physical therapy, occupational therapy, and to my doc,
my doctors, now I can walk with my cane.
And just like she said, you know, it's all about independent, being independent and
not depending on your kids. I mean the kids help me a lot but, you know, we just like
to be out there on our own and do our own thing. But I'd just like to thank you guys
for the MEO system. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
Mr. Ching.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Lloyd Fischel, followed by Ynez
Fernandez-Reyes.

MR. LLOYD FISCHEL, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC.:
Good evening. I'm humbled to be here with you this evening and all of the Mauians,
fellow Mauians. The decision to not distribute Main Street funds approved by law in
Ordinance 3840 was made behind closed doors. The decision was made without
Council approval and is indeed offensive.
Democracy of, for, and by the people is only established by justice. And, justice is
articulated not by Corporate Counsel, not by the Mayor, not by Councilmembers, but
by the three branches of government as equal partners to protect the rule of law.
Because officials work for the public, not for personal grandeur, I ask you amend, to
amend the General Budget Provisions, and to provide that when a director intends to
distri, not to distribute all or part of a grant, for reasons that concern legality, the
decision shall be subject to approval by resolution of this Council.
This makes the exercise a power according to law not an arbitrary act. There's a
growing tendency for people in government to make decisions from a corporate
executive point of view. Those at the top of the pyramid of power create
organizations to support their unique agenda.
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The Mayor testified before the Charter Commission, for example, in February and he
did what no Mayor had done before as he trumped the people by showing up, and
against common sense and propriety, he was given differential treatment like a king
watching vassals deliberate.
The goal of government is not efficiency, as you well know, but protecting freedom
and respect for life; and much blood has been spilled to insure ours does not change
into an administration of people, the scourge that defines dynasties and oligarchies.
Governments that are led without the necessary checks and balances of the three
branches are certain to do harm as governing becomes more entrenched in the
power of personality, the whims of what an official thinks is best, perhaps what
Corporation Counsel believes to be sound advice.
When a Planning Director decides not to distribute a grant and does so because
Corporation Counsel through the Mayor announces it is not in the government's best
interest, this is an arbitrary and slap in the face of democracy. Funding to Main
Street was granted and should be respected and funds released according to the
work done. A grant does not have a personality.
The Administration's stance is shrewd contrivance to validate its refusal to distribute
funds appropriated by this body.
Let's let the Mayor propose funding specific to a project. Don't give him a blank
check. What should the Council do about Main Street application for the upcoming
Fiscal Year? There are competing requests for funding and the Council will use its
best judgment, I'm sure. This kind of thinking protects our society. Thank you very
much.
And I might say, this is no endorsement for Main Street, but an attempt to get the
executive branch to respect the separate powers.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, is there a need for, have any part of the testimony
rephrased?
Ms., go ahead, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So you're saying that it's not the
Administration's job to handle the funds?
MR. FISCHEL: When an application, thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just, yes or no.
MR. FISCHEL: Ask me the question again please.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is it the Administration, Administration's job to control the
funds?
MR. FISCHEL: I'm sorry, I don't understand control of the funds.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, the Council appropriates the funds. The Administration
is in charge of caretaking the funds. And if they feel that something is not kosher,
especially when advised by their counsel, they're by law required to care for the
funds in a, a, a ju, fiduciary manner. They don't have to give out the funds if they feel
it's not appropriate. That is what checks and balances are.
MR. FISCHEL: When an application comes before this body, before the Administration, the
application is judged on its merits. If there's demerit, if it's lacking, then the problem
in the application is addressed before it even comes here for voting, yes? And in this
way, the applicant in our society grow straight. This means that in the, it is the
responsibility of the executive branch to, to study the request before it comes here,
okay. And when it comes here and it's approved at that point-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Fish, Fischel.
MR. FISCHEL: --there is an opportunity for this Council, according to our Charter, to take,
make a resolution or an ordinance appropriately.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. You've addressed the question. Thank you very much.
Members, further questions? Thank you very much, Mr. Fischel.
MR. FISCHEL: Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk, proceed.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify is Ynez Fernandez-Reyes, followed by
Eliza Reid.
MS. YNEZ FERNANDEZ-REYES, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC.:
Good evening, Council board. Oh gosh, Mr. Mateo and the Councilmembers. I'm
here on behalf of MEO to thank you for allowing such a wonderful program to exist.
Over the years when I haven't had a vehicle, MEO has really saved my life, helping
me to get food and go to doctors and, and that was what really has helped me a
great deal. And I hope that this program will go on for a very, very long time, you
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know. My, but, and it's a big surprise to me tonight to be here. I didn't know I would
be speaking. I thought I was just here to give moral support.
So the other part that, the second part that I want to present to you, I don't, I didn't
prepare anything. But I have a petition going because when I had to register, my car
broke down in November and with my life . . . because I'm trying to come up
professionally. And so then I had to I, I, my registration ran out February 1. So I
went and paid $237 which was a great hardship for me because it was my food
money and household money for the month included, you know, in that. And I have
to ration food a lot to try to get that together. And then it turned out I didn't have, I
wasn't going to be able to afford $900 to fix my timing belt. So 50 days after I
registered my car, I had to have D&D Towing take it away for recycling.
Then I went into DMV with my license plates and my registration papers and, and the
title and I'm thinking I'm going to be able to get a prorated refund because I paid so
much money, 50 days ago, and I need some help getting another car. So, then no,
there was no refund. Now I know that DMV has doubled its registration fees in the
last two years and that's fine, I, I agree that we want to help the trans, Department of
Transportation. And then they did away with the, the late fee, the one day, if you're
one day late paying your, your registration, now we have to pay $16. I'm in favor of
that, not in favor but you know I accept that. But with no prorated refund and when a
person is 50 days later, you know, because we need that money to get help, get
another car, another beat up old vehicle so we can do what we have to do to be selfsufficient and try to come up professionally.
So I'm requesting at this time that you consider some kind of a credit because, you
know, I've saved $250 now and next month I'll have $200 more, and that's all my
food money. I'm rationing food, I have to ration, I can't have fresh food 10 days out of
the month. So-CHAIR MATEO: Okay, thank. Yeah, you have another minute to conclude if you wish.
MS. FERNANDEZ-REYES: Oh. So I have a petition called a, DMV's new policies, revised
policies are hurting citizens. Now, I'm not destitute, I'm not homeless. I wrote to
Ms. Cochran, sent her my petition hoping to get a response. I got no response yet,
but I know she's very busy, you all are.
And so the, it's hurting citizens because those people who are facing losing their job
when they junked a car, they need some help when they're looking, maybe their kids
are going to be living on the beach. And they may be desperate and I'll be sitting in
there trying, you know, trying to get my car registered, and somebody that is
desperate will come in and shoot up the place. It won't be me because I have a
perfect .... I don't believe in violence. But I'm worried that it's hurting citizens. It's
too, it's just a little too strict, you know. You need to give somebody credit on the re-
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registration. If I'm going to register my car again this year, I should get some kind of
credit for what I've just, what I had to pay.

CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank, thank you. Let me ask the Members if they have, I'm sure
the Members have questions for this testifier. Members, questions? Thank you very
much.
MR. FERNANDEZ-REYES: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk, next testifier please.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify is Eliza Reid, followed by Carole Vida.
(Councilmember Baisa was excused from the public hearing at 6:50 p.m.)

MS. ELIZA REID, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC.:
Honorable Council people, thank you. I appreciate this opportunity to speak in front
of the Council. I appreciate the hard work that you're doing, trying to figure out the
budget.
Two issues that I want to talk on is, one is the, the Capital Improvement Program
summaries on Environmental Management. I'm a, I've been a master gardener for
three years and I'm studying to be a plant doctor. And I understand that you have to
deal with things as complicated as debris coming from Japan and run-off affecting
our fisheries. And I really appreciate putting some serious thought into a deeper
ecology.
There's a man called Dennis Morihiro, that's on the island of Maui who's a
beekeeper. And he has a depth of understanding about how lack of trees is causing
wind, which is causing erosion, which is affecting the environment. And the
environment is the economy so I really appreciate you taking that into account.
When I was working at the Ag Festival, Councilmember Victorino, came up to our
table and said that there was some chemical that was used in the County that
helped, destroyed a lot of the toads, which is, they're quite environmental indicator of
the health of the ecology. And I'd love to hear more about that too.
But also I appreciate very much the opportunity to acknowledge MEO for helping
people who have disabilities, who can't drive who, they're providing very critically
needed services. And also Housing and Human Concerns, I, I am very moved by
how powerful that organization is and I appreciate your support on that. And thank
you for the time.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you very much,
ma'am.
Mr. Clerk, proceed.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Carole Vida, followed by Kehau Filimoe'atu.
(Councilmember Baisa returned to the public hearing at 6:52 p.m.)
MS. CAROLE VIDA, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC. KAHI KAMALI'I INFANT
TODDLER PROGRAM
Aloha, ladies and gentlemen. My name is Carole Vida and I am an employee of
MEO but I'm here to read a letter from one of our parents for early childhood
services. This is for our Kahi Kamali'i Infant Toddler Program, and I did provide a
copy to all of you.
I'd first like to start by thanking you for supporting Kahi Kamali'i. Without the
assistance provided by the County, I would not be able to send my son to such an
amazing program.
He has only been there for a short while; however, I've seen so much improvement in
him; his motor skills, interaction with other children, and expression of his personality
has grown so much. I was able to go and observe him playing and learning.
Watching him with other children and staff made me feel very comfortable leaving
him during the work day.
The staff is very helpful, alert, thoughtful, knowledgeable, and kind, and I know he will
be safe and well taken cared of. He always has a smile on his face when he walks in
and out of Kahi Kamali'i's doors. Please continue to support this great program. My
parent is Tatiana-Malia Piena.
And I'd like to thank you as well for supporting MEO's programs.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Go ahead, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Ms. Vida. And I
don't know if you're the right person to ask, but I'll try. Are most of the children that
are enrolled at Kahi Kamali'i economically disadvantaged?
MS. VIDA: Not all of them.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not all of them, but some are.
MS. VIDA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Thank you very much, Ms. Vida.
MS. VIDA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk, proceed.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Kehau Filimoe'atu, followed by Daniel
Ledesma.
MS. KEHAU FILIMOE'ATU:
Aloha ahiahi, Honorable Chair and Councilmembers. My name is Renee May Kehau
Filimoe'atu. Born and raised on the island of Maui, except for time spent going to
school on Oahu and travelling abroad for work or business. I've always lived on the
island of Maui and will want to die here as well.
I'm here tonight to advocate the continuance of what is now called a retention
incentive pay for a cadre of dedicated County employees who man our Maui 911
Emergency Dispatch, 24 hours each and every day of the year.
This center is relatively unknown and a place that receives hundreds of calls each
and every day from people who may live here, people who are visitors, people who
are lost, people who are angry, people who are hurt and injured. All have dialed 911,
all are expecting emergency services. The workers on duty number a mere handful.
Nowadays, it's about five people answering calls for assistance from all corners of
Maui nui, all four islands at all hours of the day.
These County employees have assisted with births of babies, and have held it
together in times of intense emotions of deaths, both expected and unexpected of the
old, fragile, and the very young and innocent. These employees who are members of
HGEA have not had any pay raises through the last two contract negotiations, that's
about six years. And in fact, many members have had a five percent decrease or
furloughs in some jurisdictions. During those periods, we were fortunate to have
MOU's directly with our County to receive a retention incentive pay of $250 per
month. Our first MOU was for two years and then sunset.
Last Fiscal Year, you as a County Council, reinstated the monies to continue on this
amount. We were truly blessed and grateful. This year, we are again asking for your
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kokua to just continue what we have been blessed by you all. The amount we're
looking at is $120,000. This is for a bunch of vigilant and common folk who believe
themselves lucky to have a job, who still struggle to make ends meet with households
living from paycheck to paycheck, and many of them just one paycheck, and yet still
report to a stressful profession where malama reigns high; to dispatch emergency
units to all the emergency calls, be it an ambulance, a fire engine, a rescue boat or
crew, a jet ski, a helicopter, a forest ranger, or one of Maui's finest. Please consider
our plea during your economic and budget deliberations. Mahalo nui.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. Good evening, Kehau.
MS. FILIMOE'ATU: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Do you know if it is in the budget under any classification
or heading?
MS. FILIMOE'ATU: No, I don't.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, cause while you were talking I tried to figure this
out. I was looking.
MS. FILIMOE'ATU: I have been having a problem connecting the dots.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay, we'll, we'll go look into it. Okay, thank you,
Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Members, further questions?
Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Good evening, Kehau.
MS. FILIMOE'ATU: Aloha.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I know previous years you guys had this incentive pay.
MS. FILIMOEATU: Correct.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Because of the high turnover of the Department and trying to
keep employees was really tough. What is the turnover rate for the type of job that
you guys do?
MS. FILIMOE'ATU: Whenever we have a recruit, a recruitment class start, our retention is
usually to just to pass through the academy is about 49, 40%. We just had a class
complete, there were five people who went through the classes. We have retained
only one. Our total com, compliment would be about 41. We are presently at
23 onboard and we have about five in the wings.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. And, and, it, it was a problem at the time
and I, I can tell it's a problem again. So, thank you for your testimony.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
MS. FILIMOE'ATU: And thank you for your kokua. We just ask that we continue on and
that you keep us in your deliberation.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Members, further questions? Thank you very
much, Kehau. Aloha.
MS. FILIMOE'ATU: Aloha.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Daniel Ledesma, followed by Duke
Kuhia.
MR. DANIEL LEDESMA, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC. YOUTH SERVICES:
Good afternoon. May I start?
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
MR. LEDESMA: Okay.
CHAIR MATEO: Go ahead.
MR. LEDESMA: Good evening, Chair Ponta, Chair Mateo and Budget Committee. I've
been in MEO since the seventh grade and I am now a senior at Maui High School.
There are so much, so many things I would like to talk about but I'll talk about some
of the things I think helped me be where and who I am today.
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First of all, it helped me with school. Like, not that long ago we had our senior
project, it was really tough. And I was way behind cause the teacher didn't tell me
what to do and they really helped me catch up. I know, but it's very stressful. And
MEO helped me be who I am today by all of the things we did. We went out, we did
a lot of stuff, we helped the community. We did stuff for ourselves. It helped us learn
who we are and to be, well not to be shame, just help us get out of our shell.
I used to be very shy and now I'm open. We have done a lot. Like, this past year,
we went to the underage drinking and alcohol prevention. At one of them I helped
present the slideshow; was good. We have been all over Maui to all the different
places, did a lot. We, we worked in the We worked with many other people
and we just learned a lot. Not only about like how to do things right, what not to do,
and we learned how to do things such as cooking, building the lo'i's, how to weave,
and take care. We even have a little garden at our office.
And this is our last year that we can attend MEO. It sucks cause I really enjoy it and
everybody does. I really hope you guys continue funding cause it's the best program.
These are all our seniors that will graduate this year and it's also their last year.
Thank you for your time.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Did a good job.
CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. LEDESMA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Duke Kuhia, followed by Melissa Haake.
MR. DUKE KUHIA, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC. YOUTH SERVICES:
Good evening, Chair Mateo and Members of the Budget Committee. My name is
Duke Makani Kuhia, I'm 17 years young, and I'm proud to say I attend Maui High
School as a senior; Class of 2012.
I've been in the program for approximately five years, or six years now, my bad. And
I'm sad to say this is my last year being in the program. I would like to thank you for
funding the wonderful program and I would also like to ask, ask you for your
continuous support.
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This program has done a lot for me and my brothers and sisters here today and the
people of Maui County. This program means a lot to me. It has helped me grow up
and be more mature. This organization isn't any other program. To all of us that do
attend, it's a second home to us.
This is something, some of the things that I did that, that I did with the funds: it
helped me build leadership, it made me want to enroll at UHMC Culinary Arts
Program. This program has changed my life around and a lot of my peers and family
members notice that.
I think that I wouldn't, I wouldn't have been the person I am today. Also, I have, did
my senior project on the MEO Youth Service Program. I found out that the program
is worth the time and money that is put into the program. Because I feel that the
program is so important, I wanted to share with my peers and my teachers of Maui
High School. I would encourage anyone to join the program because they're motto
is, "Helping People, Changing Lives", and it has helped me change my life around.
So I would like to thank you for taking the time out of your busy schedule and ask you
to please continue funding the program because we are the, we are the youths of
today, we are the youths of tomorrow, and yes, we are the future. So thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you very much.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Melissa Haake, followed by Ned Davis.

MS. MELISSA HAAKE, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC. YOUTH SERVICES:
Sorry, okay. Good evening. My name is Melissa Haake and I'm a senior at Baldwin
High School. I've been in MEO for about five years. So my first time going into
MEO, I was in seventh grade, and at the time my life was kind of hectic and going
bad at home and I was kind of unhappy. So MEO was always my sweet escape.
I always looked forward to going to MEO after school. We learned new things and I
really looked forward to being around all my friends. We were taught job skills, we
practiced speaking, and I think this is my third time doing a budget hearing. It really
made it easier for me to do presentations at school and comfortable doing job
interviews. Every weekend I looked forward to doing different projects. I would
always be excited to work on something new.
MEO took me all over the island, from Olowalu to Polipoli, Hana, and Haleakala. I've
been to places where many friends and classmates have never even been before.
Sometimes we'd be driving to the beach and I can say, "hey I've been there" or "I've
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worked there". MEO has given me so much exposure. Some kids don't even realize
the beautiful island that they live on and what it holds.
MEO was always a positive part of my life and kept me out of trouble. During
intermediate, my step-brothers and I attended the program. Sometimes we would
get grounded at home for not doing our chores or something minor like that but MEO
was the only place we could go. And that was because my dad knew how important
the program was.
In the starting of my eighth grade year, Aunty Leslie, introduced us to canoe paddling
at Lae'ula 0 Kai. Immediately I fell in love with the sport. I actually found my
passion. I was fortunate enough to have someone there to get me into something, a
sport. When I was little my dad never put me into sports and I actually made friends.
I learned discipline in sports. I learned how to make an imu and make kalua pig. We
went to State's twice and I found something I love to do and am good at.
Another thing we're always around and had in common is that we loved food. We
learned to cook chicken hekka, food for softball concession stands, and many other
dishes. That leads me to where I am now. I'm planning to go into culinary, just like
Duke, and follow another one of my passions.
If it wasn't for MEO, I don't know where I'd been, I'd be. I wouldn't have the skills that
I have now, the personality that I have now, and most importantly the people I have
in my life; these goofy MEO kids and the Program Coordinators that we call Aunty.
Over the years, that word meant so much more. They're adults and somewhat
mother figures that we can have, we can turn to for everything.
Even though I'm graduating next month, I'll always have family that we all built. I'm
so thankful and proud of everything I participated in with MEO Youth Services.
Thank you, Chair Mateo and Councilmembers for your continued support and
allowing me to complete my years in this program.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you very much.
Mr., come on in, yeah, come on in.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Ned Davis, followed by Tiffany
Kahihikolo.

MR. NED DAVIS, MAUI ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD:
Hi. I, I'm Ned Davis from Trex Enterprises. I'm testifying tonight on behalf of MEDB.
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I, I got started here on Maui thanks, thanks to MEDB, that they helped me when my
very first contract when I was working for a little subsidiary of Trex and now I, I run
Trex's operations here, several million dollars' worth of revenue a year for the island.
But, but I, I figured, you know, I come every, every year to, to talk to you and I talk
about that every year. I figured maybe I'd put a more human face on this tonight.
I, I just recently hired a local girl from, from Maui who got her Bachelor's Degree in
Chemical Engineering. She came back home and there really weren't jobs for her,
for her here. She was employed, worked very hard, two jobs at once, but basically
being a, a, a technician there's not an oil refinery or, or a plastics plant here. She,
she was doing more technician type work, road work, not able to, to use her
education or, or creativity. Now I have a, a job for her here in engineering where,
where she can do new creative work and, by the way, earn twice what she was, what
she was making before.
And well, what got us to this? What, what, what led to this turn of events? Well
MEDB helped me get, as I said, the, the first contract when, when I started here for a
fiber optics project. But it was a low power energy efficient fiber optics project which
led me to a wave energy machine. And, and doing that, that machine I invented a
way to transmit mechanical power across the sealed interface. Well, from that I,
developed a new leak proof valve that I sold to the, to the Navy. And then went down
to Houston, figured well the petrochemical industry might be able to use such, such a
device, reduce downtimes at refineries and such. Well, they were very interested
and now I need my very own Chemical Engineer right, right, right here on Maui.
And to put this in, in perspective, you know, right now we're, we're, we're small. In
fact ... for the microphone for a second, the first prototypes of, of the valves are very
small, something about Home Depot size. But overall, not counting commercial
market, just a, and I'm sorry not counting residential market, just commercial valves;
fifty billion dollar global industry. A, a percent or two of that could, could be, you
know, a huge business for, for us. So I think you can, you can really lead to, to great
things and great opportunities for, for our local kids.
And really that's what MEDB is, is, is all about, building a, a pathways to better
economic future, diversifying the, the local economy and offering opportunities. So I
want to thank all of you for, for your support of MEDB in the, in, in the past and hope
that you can continue to support them in the future.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you, Mr. Davis.
MR. DAVIS: Oh, thanks.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
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DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Tiffany Kahihikolo, followed by Barry
Rivers.

MS. TIFFANY KAHIHIKOLO, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC. BEST PROGRAM:
Aloha, Council Chair. Aloha, Members of the County Council. My name is Tiffany
Kahihikolo and I'm here on behalf of the BEST Program through MEO. I can say I'm
very grateful and I'm very proud and I am a product of the BEST Program.
Transitioning into the community, for me, was very hard coming out of incarceration,
rehabilitation. They started me off with pre-employment classes, which I say is
employment etiquette, for me, coming back into the job working field. They also led
me into budget and money management classes. So after I finding a job, I can be
responsible, dependable, independent. From there they put me into college with the
SLIM Program, Sustainable Living Program at the Maui College.
With the help of Jerry having confidence in me and asking me to go into this program,
I learned building, construction, sustainable homes, building of homes, using
alternative energy, and graduating from the pilot class through MEO and putting me
in that SLIM Program. From there, MEO is in a partnership with alternate energy,
here on Maui that they held an job training program. Of four groups, five in each
group, I was the last group and the only girl in that group. Again, Jerry, having
confidence in me and says, "Tiffany, you go". I went. Today I believe I am the only
woman in solar hot water, photovoltaic installation technician here on Maui.
A co-worker of mine recently moved to Oahu. He also works for alternate energy on
Oahu. I'm like, "bruddah, you see any women in the industry out there?" You know,
he said, "sistah, so far only you". I'm proud of that. I want more women in this
industry. It's a go green industry, it's a industry that's booming. But without MEO,
and having confidence in me and having the support of you, Councilmembers, for the
money, putting me in this program, you know. I encourage women to be like me and
to get into this industry.
Today, I get to educate families. I get to go into people's homes and let them know
about alternate energy, alterna, alternative energy, how they can save money and
things like that. And I love it cause I get to go into homes of unfortunate people that
don't know, not only with solar hot water but with photovoltaic and how that can
sustain them for their future, for their children; putting them into college by saving
money. So with, you know, I'm very proud and I'm very grateful for MEO and I'm very
thankful for you, County for, keep supporting them cause I am a product of the BEST
Program. Thank you.
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CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not really a question but I want to congratulate you and tell
you I'm really proud of you. Thank you.
MS. KAHIHIKOLO: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Questions, Members? Thank you very much.
MS. KAHIHIKOLO: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Barry Rivers, followed by Kahoku
Kealoha.
MR. BARRY RIVERS, MAUI FILM FESTIVAL:
Aloha all, aloha Chairman Mateo. I just want to throw in a plug for MEO as well. Our
kids went there to Head Start 30 plus years ago and it made the world of difference to
a lot of them that dovetail seamlessly into this community. They met kids, have all
sort of, you know, nations of the universe it seemed at the time. It meant a lot to us
having moved here to be accepted in that way and it meant a lot to our kids and still
does. So that's that.
I'm here actually to speak about the Maui Film Festival. I want to thank Don Couch
for using the word, "kosher", in the Council. I never thought I'd hear that in 30 years
and haven't but thank you, Don, appreciate that earlier. Also want to thank you all for
your support for the last 12 years. The festival is known around the world in no small
measure due to the support that we've gotten from you during this time.
We are, we try our best to the a, a true member to the community, doing things for
the community as, as often as we can. Most recently, we've been supporting the
Maui Arts and Cultural Center screenings of complimentary films for families at the, at
the amphitheater lawn. We also took the lead in the, in the beautification of Baldwin
Beach. We're in the process of sort of bringing back the grove that's sort of on the
right side on the Paia side of the beach back to life. So those are things we take
great pride in although they don't have a whole lot to do, that one doesn't at least with
the festival itself.
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The festival employs, I think probably at least, well employs and/or pays businesses
based on Maui, probably fifty times over during the festival. All the money we get
from the Council for all these years has stayed on Maui. It, it basically goes to pay
the Maui folks that we use, you know, the Maui printers that we use, and Maui
designers we use, and some of our tech staff and so forth. So we feel really good
about that.
Want to put a shout out to MEDB and Jeanne Skog and her terrific team who have
been our fiscal sponsors for the money, money we get that's . . . from the County
over all these years. What else? I want to thank the Office of Economic
Development as well. We've had the good fortune to work under four, I think four or
five film commissioners most recently Harry Donenfeld who's new in the position but
has been, has been good to us, as has Teena Rasmussen, but all of the
predecessors have been good to the festival and have meant a lot to our success. I
want to thank all of them.
What else? You know we, what we do really is open windows in the world and we do
it through cinema. And that's the thing we sort of take the most pride in. It's
something that we feel is the best thing that we can contribute to the community is
allowing people to see the world around us large in these wonderful films that we get
to show at the Arts and Cultural Center, and in Wailea. And we, you know, we love
the opportunity to continue to do that and hope that you will support the festival again
this year through the request made from the OED office. Thank you so much. Any
questions?
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
MR. RIVERS: Thanks so much, take care.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Rivers. Mr. Couch has used many words we haven't
heard before.
Mr. Clerk.
CHAIR MATEO: Next person to testify is Kelly Takashi, followed by Kahoku Kealoha.

MR. KAHOKU KEALOHA, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC. YOUTH SERVICES:
Hi, my name is Kahoku Kealoha. I am a, I am sixth grade and I'm going to Maui
Waena and I'm here representing MEO. I'd like to say first thing that I like to thank
the Councilmembers for supporting the MEO program.
And it has been a great experience for me and my fellow friends. It is like a second
home to me. It is like Ms. Nicole and Mr. Max are like my mom and dad. They keep
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me in check and they come to our schools and they teach me how underage drinking
can affect us and how smoking is really bad for us. And it really, it really touches
home when I see that people such a young age drinking alcohol. It is like, it is like
somebody getting killed, they're, they're killing themselves, and it really, it really hurts
to see that somebody is killing themselves by drinking beer such at a early age. And,
I don't have anything else to say.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions?
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Kealoha, thank you very much. And thank you for
that message, you know, that drinking is a way of dying and of slowly killing yourself.
Do you have a lot of friends that drink at your age that you know of?
MR. KEALOHA: Yeah, there's a couple of people that drink in my age and they're a bad
crowd so when I go to school they tempt me to do stuff and I don't really do it cause I
know what's good for me.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, you can be a jerk when you want to be?
MR. KEALOHA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All right. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Kealoha. Some of the
things they teach you at MEO, is it, do they teach you public speaking?
MR. KEALOHA: No. I've been public speaking for, at a young age, but.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You've been doing very well, very, very well. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Better than Couch.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you very much for
being here this evening. You're very impressive. I'd like to ask you, you know, we're
very concerned about underage drinking and I attended the "Be a Jerk" sessions that
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we had recently with the MEO drinking prevention people. But I'm very curious. You
know, people are getting alcohol somewhere. You know, it's illegal to have alcohol if
you're underage. Where do you think they're getting it?
MR. KEALOHA: I think like basically adults, they're not responsible. They don't think that
it's going to affect the little, the little kids. And we're, we're people that's supposed to
be our future for Maui. And these people, they're not thinking about how it affects our
community and they're just not thinking right. So, it's either that or these people need
to be put away cause what they're doing is affecting us.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That, I, that, that's very important because, you know, if we're
going to stop this, we got to figure out what's causing it. And so it's really important
that people like you that are, you know, aware of it, that see what's happening, give
us information. You know, is it out of the refrigerator, in the garage, or what is it?
MR. KEALOHA: I don't know. Parents probably are not responsible enough to keep the
beer from them. Like my, my dad didn't drink but, but like when they drink too much,
I tell him to stop cause I don't want to see him to get to that point.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Why, thank you very much. And I think you're, you're an
amazing speaker. You're well on your way. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you very much, Mr. Kealoha.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify is Kelly Takashi, followed by Adolfo
Bielish.

MR. KELLY TAKUSHI JR., MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC. YOUTH SERVICES:
Good evening, Councilmembers. My name is Kelly Takushi Jr. and I am a student at
Maui High, I'm a junior this year. And I'd just like to thank the Councilmembers for
supporting this.

It's a, it's a very important thing, in my opinion, to support because although it's, it
may not be the biggest program that is out there, it definitely does make a difference
in our community. It educates the younger, the younger generation like me and my
friend Kahoku and all of our other friends on how to grow up safely and how to do it
right. And this "Be a Jerk" campaign is just definitely that. It's teaching us that it's not
right for adults to buy young ones alcohol. And it doesn't do us any good and it
doesn't do them any good either because if something does happen to the minor,
they can be held responsible. And it's just something that should be get, be out

Public Hearing of the Council of the County of Maui
April 25, 2012
Page 37
there, should be known, it shouldn't be kind of like kept under, you know, under
wraps. So it's definitely a wonderful thing that it is out there and people support it.
And just doing this program, like, not even a year ago from, well about a year ago, I
wasn't the best student. I was mixed up with the wrong crowd and then Dane and
Martha came to our school and I was in my sophomore health class and they told us
about this. So, and then I signed up and I totally turned around. I'm doing much
better now and it's just wonderful that in a, in a year's time the turnarounds that one
can make from being maybe considered one of the bad apples to maybe one of the
most shiny ones. So it's, it's just a wonderful feeling to know that it is possible for
anyone, any age, to turn around from any specific point in their life.
And the MEO Underage Drinking Prevention Program definitely helps with that. So,
thank you for supporting it and it would be nice if you could continue to support it. It
definitely makes a difference in the, in our community even though it's not seen right
away. But it definitely, definitely does.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions?
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly. Kelly, thank you for being here and you
are very articulate. So-MR. TAKUSHI: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I don't know, if they're not teaching you guys, then I
would, tell them not to start. How many members do you have in your organization
now, your club?
MR. TAKUSHI: There's a, there's a good number of us. There's what? How, how many do
we have Nicole? Five hundred enrolled.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Five hundred enrolled.
MR. TAKUSHI: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wow. Okay. And do you, you just said then, and so I
thought this was very interesting, real quickly, you said I was one of the bad apples
but within a year I was able to turn around. Do you turn around to the other guy you
use to hang out with and say, hey I can do it, come on down?
MR. TAKUSHI: I definitely do encourage any of my friends who are with the bad crowd, you
know like with, or not the, they're not bad people it's just the things they do are bad. I
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don't, I don't condemn anybody as a bad person, just their actions may not be the
best.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They, they not bad, they're not, their actions are not bad,
their making bad choices?
MR. TAKUSHI: Yes, exactly. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, and so just tell them to make the right choice and
join you and you can see the right end results.
MR. TAKUSHI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Kelly, I have two alcoholics in my family
because they made bad choices when they were about your age. So I really
congratulate you all for getting on the right track. One of those alcoholics just died a
month ago. Think about that. So, you guys are on the right track. Congratulations.
MR. TAKUSHI: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. White. Members, further questions?
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Kelly, you've been in the program since this began. And my
understanding is this program is going to terminate on June 30 because there is no
more money. Is that, is that, are you aware of that? Maybe I have to ask staff.
MR. TAKUSHI: Until now, I think I heard it once.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
I'll clarify it with somebody else, Chair.
But it's my
understanding that the funds for this are a one-time funding and it's going to end
June 30. And if that is the case, you still feel that this is something that might be
worthwhile to continue?
MR. TAKUSHI: I definitely do think it is because it helps, it helps us to not only grow as a
person, but it helps us to encourage our family members. It helps us educate our
family members on the right choices to make. And it also helps us educate our peers
because if not for this MEO program, I wouldn't be here today. I wouldn't be here in
the position I am speaking to all of you today.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, thank you very much. I think it's important that we stop
this before we get into things like the horrible accidents we've seen and all of the
problems that come with alcohol addiction. Thank you.
MR. TAKUSHI: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you very much, Mr. Takushi.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify is Adolfo Bielish, followed by Alison
Mikes.

MR. ADOLFO VALDERRAMA BIELISH, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY INC. ENLACE
HISPANO PROGRAM:
Council Chair Danny Mateo, Members of the Council, County Council, ladies and
gentlemen, good evening. My name is Adolfo Valderrama and I am a resident of
Kihei since 2006. I stand in support of Maui Economic Opportunity Enlace Hispano
Program. Without all of their support, I could not proudly say now that after 12 years
of . . . I finally became a citizen of the United States.
I would like to ask the City Council the continuation of the program because it will
benefit other people like me.
(Councilmember Pontanilla was excused from the public hearing at 7:29 p.m.)
MR. VALDERRAMA: I can say thank you in first person but also ask their support in other
service for other people that will come after that; for example, in services of
translations and interpreter services.
Please consider that the relation between the Hispano's and Hawaii goes back to the
paniolo's at the beginning of the 1800's when the King of Spain send the first
Espanolist to Lahaina. And the Spanish guitar evolved in the beloved ukulele. Now
the rodeo is still in practice now. The beneficiaries of the program have a
compromise to cooperate with a community in their best of our possibilities. Again,
mahalo for your kokua.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Cochran.

Public Hearing of the Council of the County of Maui
April 25, 2012
Page 40

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Aloha, nice to see you Adolfo. Adolfo, in the
years that you've, you know, come here and integrated into our, our culture and
society, did you also seek help through our Immigration Services at all? Were they of
help to you at any time? Our County Immigration Services.
MR. VALDERRAMA: Also, yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
MR. VALDERRAMA: In addition to that, yes. The counsel help, help me a lot and I took
the, the course from the, from the program. And there were three, three, three other
applicants with that, that took the course with me. Last week there was another new
citizen from Central America with the name Felix and I think that in the following
weeks there will come more people. Also we have the compromise that we are going
to return to the program to tell the others what was the experience.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
MR. VALDERRAMA: And in addition, we have the compromise to help, you, you know, in
Save Honolua, and in, in Kihei, in, in, as a soccer coach in my, in my experience.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Adolfo.
MR. VALDERRAMA: Thank you for your attention.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Cochran. Any additional questions, Members? Thank
you very much, sir.
MR. VALDERRAMA: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, the Chair is aware of the time. We have six more individuals
who have signed up to testify. Do we just go-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Go, go.
CHAIR MATEO: --continue?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Clerk.
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DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Alison Mikes, followed by Gwendolyn
Brush.

MS. ALISON MIKES, MAUI ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY, INC. HEAD START PROGRAM:
Hello. My name is Alison Mikes. I'm here on behalf of MEO Head Start. My
daughter Ella is in Wailuku B, the, that center. She qualifies under special needs. A
year ago, Ella couldn't feed herself.
(Councilmember Pontanilla returned to the public hearing at 7:33 p.m.)
MS. MIKES: She has ADHD, sensory reprocessing disorder, and a fine motor delay. If she
hadn't gotten, gotten into Head Start I don't know where we would be today. We
have a different child from a year ago to now and it's been so helpful and thank you
for supporting it. And please, please continue to support it.
We're a military family and my husband is stationed here right now. We move every
four years and I was panicked when we moved here cause I couldn't find a preschool cause it's just, you know, it's a smaller island than I'm used to. I'm from
Houston. So, when this came about, I was so thankful. We've utilized every part of
Maui County services and I can't, from the bottom of my heart, thank you enough.
She's been through IMUA and now Head Start and please continue to support
Head Start.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you, Ms. Mikes.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Gwendolyn Brush, followed by Pualani
Enos.
CHAIR MATEO: Gwendolyn Brush.
Mr. Clerk, proceed.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify is Pualani Enos, followed by Bill
Greenleaf.

MS. PUALANI ENOS, HUI MALAMA LEARNING CENTER:
Aloha, Council Chair and Councilmembers. Thank you for having me tonight. I know
that you've heard from our students and all of our really fabulous board members and
staff. But I wanted to just address one of the questions that came up at one of the
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meetings, which is where are our students now and what kind of data are we keeping
on them. So, this is something that has not been something we've been very good at
in our history. So over the past two years, we've been working on it so I just wanted
to address that.
But before I do, I just, in looking over the numbers and our accomplishments, without
your money over the past two years before that and your faith in us and our very
small community, we would not have been able to run. We literally would have shut
our doors and we just want to thank you for your investment in our older youth. So
there are a lot of programs for younger kids and middle, middle-schoolers if their, if
they enter at that age. But many of the students that we work with, they've fallen out
of all of those programs. They're not part of anything and their families really have a
hard time because of other issues, mental health issues, physical issues, and usually
they're compounded. And we really appreciate your taking the time to get to know
who our students are, who our families are, and we also really appreciate how you
support the other programs that help us to do what we do.
So, we used to run a program, Hawaiian Outdoor Education, so I'm going to go back
to that because that's when I began. So in academic year '07, we had a 92% rate out
of that Hawaiian Outdoor Education. Out of the 13, 14 students that we had, 13
matriculated back into high school. The following year, we had developed that
program to a, a full-time program rather than just homeschool. It was a full-day
program with Hawaiian Canoe Club and 16 out of those students went back to public
school and they are all now in the graduating class. So they've been able to
matriculate back and take advantage of those things. And five of those students
came out of the emersion program. So we're also able to help students who have
ESL issues or just, we help them to get back into other systems.
Going to this year, which is, we've modeled our new middle school, high school
program after that more developed program through your support over the past two
years. And we've had a 92% success rate. Out of 39 students, 39 of our students
are in college, four out of those five students are also working, four students went
back to DOE.
For our high school, we had 100%. They either went onto GED, we actually had five
students go back to public school. So in working with Probation and . . . for the first
time we've been able to matriculate our high school students back into high school.
And then for our middle school, six went to public school, six stayed with us, and one
is working. So even though that person didn't finish school, because of your
willingness to support our Workforce Development, we have instilled in our kids the
need to actually be independent from their families. To not rely on their families for
their basic needs, to get out into the workforce. And those include people like
professional surfers--
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CHAIR MATEO: One minute.
MS. ENOS: --who believe that they're going to be able to make it without having a regular
job. Musicians, who think that they'll be able, you know, they get now.
We've interested many of our kids in farming and whole foods and sustainability
issues that are really an imminent kind of crisis for us if we ever get off, cut off from
the mainland. And we are lucky because of your support to those programs that we
work with like: Community Work Day, Maui Economic Development Board, Maui
Farm, UH Maui College, Teens on Call, Maui Nui, Hawaiian Canoe Club. We don't
have to do substance abuse because MYFS does those things. We don't have to try
and do all the physical fitness and all those things. We can prepare our students,
participate in those things that they never thought they could. Even Youth Challenge,
for some of our kids to go off-island is like going to the moon.
So, we take advantage of that as well as we're able.
CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, Ms. Enos.
MS. ENOS: Oh.
CHAIR MATEO: Have you made that, your testimony available to the Members?
MS. ENOS: Yes, I can. I can, okay.
CHAIR MATEO: Please, please. Members, questions for the testifier?
MS. ENOS: Sorry for taking that much. Thanks.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much, Ms. Enos.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Bill Greenleaf, followed by Vincent
Mina.

MR. BILL GREENLEAF, MAUI FARMERS UNION:
Chair Mateo, Councilmembers, thank you. My name is Bill Greenleaf and I'm a
member of the organizing committee of Maui Farmers Union, and State Treasurer for
Hawaii Farmers Union. I'm really glad I came tonight. This has, this has been
wonderful hearing these stories. A really touching experience seeing how people's
lives are changed.
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And I'd like to bring you a story about that, like that, about the Farmers Union. I, I
know some of the Councilmembers have attended our meetings and we just started
our third year in March of having continuous meetings. We're noticing that we're
attracting a lot more young people, the 20 to 30 age group and we feel like we're,
we're a very important bridge now for the people that want to learn how to grow
regeneratively to create a healthy lifestyle for themselves. And it's, I would invite you
all to come to our meetings and, and see for yourself the educational outreach, the
experience around food, the ohana that's being created.
We have 400 members across the State now. We've become an active voice for
legislative initiatives to protect the future of local agriculture and, and there is a, there
is unfortunately, there is a clash between commercial agriculture and local
agriculture. And that clash, I don't think it's between the people, I think it's where the
corporations put their money into lobbyists and lobbyists can afford to spend a lot of
time. Many of us took money out of our own pockets, you know, I have skin in the
game this year, to fly to Oahu and to work with the Legislature to craft bills that are,
when I, when I mention to the public we're trying to work in plain English, it gets a big
laugh. And, and I, I have to say that there must be a reason for that, especially when
I read some of the bills I get so dizzy with the language, right away I know there's
imminent danger.
But I, I wanted to tell you that we have, we're in our third year of having Tri-Isle as our
fiscal agent and they, they handle grants so we feel like we have enough of a track
record to imagine ourselves going into the future, maybe 10 years from now, being
able to provide some great stories. Like we would have a trade school going where
we'd be training young farmers. We'd be supporting more educational outreaches.
And best of all, if you imagine a place like Napa, California with the beautiful
agriculture and what an amazing tourist attraction it is. Maui is a paradise and it's the
place people want to come and see food grown in the most beautiful way. And I, I
think that our organization stands for that possibility and, and I'd like to ask the
County to consider supporting us as time goes forward. We could use your help.
Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Couch, followed by Ms. Baisa, and Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Greenleaf for being
here. Are you getting any support right now from the Office of Economic
Development at this point? Is your organization?
MR. GREENLEAF: No.

Public Hearing of the Council of the County of Maui
April 25, 2012
Page 45

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, and you mentioned you had Tri-Isle RC&D as your
fiscal agent?
MR. GREENLEAF: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, cause I think it was mentioned in the meeting that you
had no 501(c)(3) but you kind of have a, an umbrella organization to handle your-MR. GREENLEAF: Yes, we've talked that over with Tri-Isle and they are an umbrella for
over 20 grants for the County and we feel like we're in good hands with them.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Couch.
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thank you. Mr. Couch, asked the question. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Ms. Baisa.
Ms., Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you. Thanks for addressing that concern that
was brought up on the floor the other evening about a physical sponsor, sponsor.
And so what is it that you would, are looking for at this point? Were you looking for
some type of monetary support at all? And if so, how much?
MR. GREENLEAF: We have never considered that to this point. We, we've mostly been
trying to do our job and, and create a great organization. If the County can find some
budgetary money, I promise you it will be well spent. We'll, we'll put it toward
developing a more, a more professional organism, organization and creating more
opportunities for. Our, our main focus is growing great food and we see the children,
the young people as the people who are really going to carry that into the future and
we would support that.
And, and I wanted to add one other thing. We really missed "MAA" and Body and
Soil Conference this year. So if County, we also, Maui Farmers Union really supports
the educational outreach.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Cochran, additional questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Yeah, thank you, Mr. Greenleaf. Aloha.
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MR. GREENLEAF: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Greenleaf.
MR. GREENLEAF: Thank you all.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk, proceed.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Vincent Mina, followed by Nani
Watanabe.

MR. VINCENT MINA, MAUI ALOHA AINA:
Aloha, Council Chair. Aloha, Councilmembers. How's it? I understand that there's
some questions around Maui Aloha Aina's line item that, that you folks want to ask
me. Before that though I'd like to articulate that, mention that Bill Greenleaf is a
product of our conferences at Maui Aloha Aina in the sense that him and his wife own
and operate a two acre farm Upcountry that is amazingly productive for two acres of
land.
And also just to clarify, I did advocate for an $11,000 grant for Farmers Union, Maui
Farmers Union, two years ago, and we received it. The only problem was the board
that was in place that I was on wanted to control the organization from, from a central
board instead of giving each island autonomy and I was against that. They wanted to
control the grant from another island and that was not possible since it's Maui money.
They came here, the President came here without my being there at the meeting and
met with two of the Councilmembers that are here and basically sabotaged that
grant. So, if you have any other questions regarding Maui Aloha Aina, I'm here.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, questions for the testifier?
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Mina for coming. Are
you still doing your conference? I believe there's a 10,000-MR. MINA: There's, there's a $10,000 line item. We, we lost 55% of that of 22,000 that we
had. So, we're trying to, we submitted a, a contract for that $10,000 to, to have a
conference. We just have to scale it way back. So, we're looking to hopefully have
that in July, yet we're not, we haven't started promoting that.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So, so you're still looking for, are you still asking for
the 25 or?
MR. MINA: Well, in essence we were at 22 and-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Twenty-two.
MR. MINA: --and last year and we lost 55% of it for whatever reason. And, and so yeah,
just, we're just trying to make on what we have right now. And, and so building these
conferences, I, we've been doing it since 2001 and so thankfully we've been able to,
to do that. Appreciate the support that we've had over those years yet at the same
time what has been granted to us and what, what needs to, to truly take this to the
next level is, is going in the other direction and not being cut, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All right, and also congratulations on being chosen as a
TEDx speaker.
MR. MINA: Oh, thank you so much.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You're a very good, you're a very good talk.
MR. MINA: Thank you. I'm quickly becoming a legend in my own mind.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Mina.
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Vincent. Have you turned in, after the
conference, a report to the County on how you expended money, what monies were
brought in?
MR. MINA: Mhm. Tri-Isle RC&D is our fiscal agent and-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well-MR. MINA: --and basically-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --when you turn it into the County, that's my question,
cause we've been told, or at least I was told, that they did not receive anything from
you folks.
MR. MINA. No, when we get done our, when we get done our events, we do a report and
we hand it in to Tri-Isle and Tri-Isle hands it into whoever it's supposed to go to, yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think OED or whatever but-MR. MINA: Uh huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay we'll, we'll request that, Mr., well, I'll ask that of the
Budget Chair to get a copy of that.
MR. MINA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Cause that's one of the stumbling blocks that seems to
have come up.
MR. MINA: I see.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. All right, thank you, Vince.
MR. MINA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Mr. Victorino.
Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Vince. Vince, what came
up yesterday during the meeting with OED, when this grant came up, it was
mentioned that the conference would cost $17,000 to put on and the grant is for 10.
We were told that $5,000 would come from fees that are charged but there was no
explanation of where the other 2,000 was going to come from. So I asked the
question, you know the numbers don't add up, where's the other two grand coming
from? Well, it was very strange cause we didn't have that in front of us when we
were discussing it, but later in the day, I did receive a copy of, like you have in your
hand, and it shows $2,000 from food.
MR. MINA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So can, can you kind of add that up just so that it makes
sense?
MR. MINA: Yeah, we, you know, basically what I've done over the years is approach this
as, hey look guys I'm not getting paid so I go to people, well like Mana Foods and the
health food stores and stuff and I say you know, let's make a community effort, let's
make a community event. I've gotten rooms for the speakers, I've gotten speakers to
waive their speaker fees, this kind of thing, this kind of approach. I'm figuring like, if
I'm not getting paid, you know, let's all come to the table and, and make this happen.
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What I do also is in exchange for the speakers, I take them around the island to other
regenerative practicing farms. And when I say regenerative, what we do in our
practices, cause I don't want to use the word organic. I'm not trying to pigeon-hole
this as a us versus them kind of a thing cause I love all farmers and I want to support
all farmers.
It's just that in, like in my TEDx presentation I had on one side of the room, dead soils
and live soils, I just want to advocate and, and educate farmers to be standing and
pointed in the direction towards live soil so we can-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Mina. Excuse me, the question was if you-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The finances.
CHAIR MATEO: There you go.
MR. MINA: The finances, right. Absolutely, Gladys.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What we were trying to do was to find $17,000 and what I'm
hearing from you is $2,000 worth of in-kind contributions of food-MR. MINA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --as well as probably a lot of other in-kind is given to the
conference. We didn't have that in front of us and that's why there were questions.
MR. MINA: Right. I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It showed up later.
MR. MINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that's why you heard that we were asking questions. Had
we had the report, it would have been easy.
MR. MINA: I don't know why you folks didn't have the report in all honesty because Stuart
Funke-d'egnuff, and I'd like to see that people try to say that name three times.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MR. MINA: He's a great guy and he's been so supportive of us. Tri-Isle's been such a great
fiscal agent. We work in great concert with one another in, in taking care of all that
and so he has all that information.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just bad timing. Okay, but that was why it came up.
MR. MINA: Great, yeah.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, additional questions? Thank you very much, Mr. Mina.
MR. MINA: Okay, and thank you very much everybody. Aloha.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify, Nani Watanabe, followed by Rosemary
Robbins.

MS. NANI WATANABE, FESTIVALS OF ALOHA, MAUI NUI STYLE:
Good evening, Chair Mateo and Councilmembers. My name is Nani Watanabe and
I'm here for the Festivals of Aloha, Maui Nui Style. And I'd like to say thank you, and
on behalf of our committee, could not be here tonight, but we would like to definitely
thank you for supporting our festivals.
I've been involved now with Festivals of Aloha for five years. And what's really nice is
with this funding, we're able to celebrate our festivals on each of our islands; Maui,
Lanai, Molokai, and Hana. And thank you so much. We are able to bring our master
artisans to showcase their, their skills and their talents and Hawaiian artisans. So I'd
like to say thank you and continue to support us and come and join us and enjoy our
events as well.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you,
Ms. Watanabe.
MS. WATANABE: Bye.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Next person to testify is Rosemary Robbins.
MS. ROSEMARY ROBBINS, EPA UPCOUNTRY OVERSIGHT AND ADVISORY
COMMITTEE:
Good evening, everybody. Welcome to my world. You have to love what you've
heard tonight and what you heard when you came Upcountry last week. It's just, this
is what I do with my time, mostly. And it's just such a thrill to see these youth and to
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see the leaders who are giving them such good role modeling, watch that whole thing
develop. And while you folks are here doing all the number crunching and all the rest
of the stuff which may or may not be your first joy but it's part of your responsibility,
all this wonderful stuff is going on out there, so hurray for all of it.
I just would like to say a couple of things. Mike, my condolences on the loss of your
family member that was dealing with alcoholism. Also, Mike Victorino, you asked
about the possibility of State and County working together in the probation and other
law enforcement kinds of things. I was a guardian ad litem for the State of Hawaii
and our training was here on Maui, which was wonderful that we didn't, I mean it was
like a 40 hour course where we didn't have to go over, I came to Maui 30 years ago
with some background on this anyway. The training that we got here by people from
here was wonderful. I have a thing about dealing with prevention rather than
mopping up, yeah, with results that could have been better. So that is happening
here and hurray for Maui for doing it and hurray for the State for being in partnership
with that.
Just, when I saw those kids, I taught last week at Maui High, I teach at Baldwin, I
teach at Upcountry, and at loads of the elementary schools, and it's just such fun. I'm
looking at somebody here whose children were at Lihikai when I was doing a,
preparing for the drug-free years program, 12-hour program that was sponsored by
the Department of Health and, and there's just been such good partnership with State
and with County working on the kinds of issues that you've heard brought to you here
tonight.
I would like to also address the, one of the gentleman brought up the idea about
levels of government. I'm not too sure what's happening on Main Street, not my hood
down here. I try to listen and learn. But I'm encouraging very much to have you work
with oversight, the Oversight and Advisory Committee for the EPA which got a half
million dollars for this County to use; was not a 501(c). We did not have control of
that. That was up to the Administration and it was not well dispersed. And the
records are all over the place from the EPA and from the Department of Health on
that. So I would ask you to have all of that interaction be something that's well
intended, that's respectfully carried out and that is very transparent.
So, last thought-CHAIR MATEO: One minute.
MS. ROBBINS: --asking you to watch and ask and make sure that all of these wonderful
people that you've heard from and the programs that they're in receive wonderful
qualitative and quantities of it, water with horse before cart. Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Thank you,
Ms. Robbins.
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MS. ROBBINS: Aloha.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Chairman, the last person that signed up to testify is Gerry
Dameron.

MR. GERRY DAMERON, SUSTAINABLE AGRICULTURE FOUNDATION FOR
EDUCATION:
Good evening, good evening, Council. Thank you for being here working late once
again on behalf of our citizens of Maui. I'm here tonight to talk about the issue of
food security on Maui. We all know that it's a very tenuous situation when all of our
citizens and our visitors are depending on food being shipped, 85% to 92% of our
food being shipped in from off-island. Everyone recognizes this challenge. Not many
people are offering potential solutions, solutions that offer innovation and long-term
sustainability for our food supply for our aina for our people.
I would like to speak in support of two ideas, two opportunities, two organizations,
who I believe can make an impact with a small investment of support in our future
food security. At the same time, these organizations can support the future
education of our famers in the future, create economic stimulus, and local economic
development, more local food, and healthy food for our citizens.
The first organization is Maui Farmers Union United. Wonderful organization, I've
been watching them for several months, I'm now a voting member. They are bringing
in lots of resources for the top organic farmers, natural farmers, regenerative farmers,
and giving us a chance to see real innovation while having small businesses that can
grow and provide significant food resources.
I understand that Council is considering 350,000, maybe $375,000 to support
another farm organization on the island, the Farm Bureau. This is a wonderful
organization, it's already supported by very profitable, high profit agri-businesses. If
the Council feels that it's worthwhile to invest 350 or $375,000 in this organization
that already has robust support to do their agri-business and to expand agri-business
on the island, imagine what Maui Farmers Union United could do with even 10% of
that money.
The other organization, which is the Sustainable Agriculture Foundation for
Education, I've already spoken with many of you about this organization. For a
modest investment, we can educate a couple hundred new organic farmers, natural
farmers, regenerative farmers. Create economic stimulus locally, get more local
food, and help us in the long, in the long term. So I would ask for some, a small

Public Hearing of the Council of the County of Maui
April 25, 2012
Page 53

amount of financial support compared to the Farm Bureau to help us stimulate the
local economy and local economies. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, there was also a part about aquaculture and not
really a big call for it or a big interest or what have you. So I'm just curious if you are
aware of aquaculture, aqua culturist if that's what they're called here.
MR. DAMERON: Yeah, I, I'm, I'm not an, an agriculture expert. I'm a community activist
and a, and an enthusiast and I've seen the passion and the innovation that these
organic farmers and these local-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm just asking strictly about aquaculture.
MR. DAMERON: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: If there's any members in the Farmer's Union who deal
with aquaculture.
MR. DAMERON: I don't know of any directly; however, there's been discussion in the
charter of the Sustainable Agriculture Foundation to have expanded fish farms and
expanded aquaculture as part of the curriculum and as part of the program. So
thanks for asking. We are definitely interested in, in advancing that. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: She brought up a good I, what about hydrophoni,
hydro-phonics? You guys have that as part of you guys-MR. DAMERON: We, we went up and looked in Haiku at a highly innovative system that
has five different media beds and a, a tilapia fish tank. It was amazing. And they had
five different-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Look, I, I, again, thank you. I'm, I just asking, do you
guys have it as a part of your program?
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MR. DAMERON: We're willing to entertain all sorts of, of innovative technologies including
what we saw in Haiku, which does have the, the mist farming where they can get
yields of 500 to 700% greater using, using those technologies. We're very open to
that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. DAMERON: And, and with the SAFE Program, to address that-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Dameron, thank you. You have, you have answered his question.
MR. DAMERON: Thank you so much.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, further questions?
MR. DAMERON: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, Mr. Dameron was the last individual that
has signed up to provide testimony this evening. The Chair will offer anyone in the
gallery who had not testified prior, if you wish to share testimony with the Council,
please advance to the podium at this time.
I see Camp Maluhia. When you're done with your testimony, if you can please stop
at the table to fill out your testimony form.

MR. ROBERT NAKAGAWA, BOY SCOUTS, CAMP MALUHIA:

Thank you, Councilman. I'd just like to thank you. You guys have put in so many-CHAIR MATEO: State your name for the record.
MR. NAKAGAWA: My name is Robert Nakagawa, I'm the Scout Executive for the Maui
County Council Boy Scouts. And hats off to all of you for the countless hours you put
into this. I've followed you around to a number of the presentations. Thank you very
much for allowing our scouts to speak and share their passion for our camp.
We do have Lahainaluna coming up this week and Seabury coming up the following
week. And many other organizations that weren't able to come up on our behalf to
testify, such as . . . and such. But camp is utilized tremendous amount and I'd just
like to extend my invitation to each of you to take a tour to see what it looks like now
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as we're underway to making our improvements. And, if we could host any events up
there for you, we'd be happy to do so. But if there's any questions that I might be
able to field that you may have about our camp or the needs that it has.

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier?
Thank you, Mr. Nakagawa.
MR. NAKAGAWA: Thank you.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Members, Mr. Nakagawa, is the last individual to
provide testimony this evening. With no objections, we will close public testimony.
Any objections?
MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Members, we are also in receipt of written testimony. With no
objections, we will receive them into the record. Any objections?
THERE BEING NO OBJECTION, WRITTEN TESTIMONY
RECEIVED FROM THE FOLLOWING WERE MADE A PART
OF THE RECORD OF THIS PUBLIC HEARING:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Bob & Cleo Mason;
Ray Shimabuku, IBEW, Local Union 1186;
Lloyd Fischel;
Kristina Jackson;
Lyn McNeff, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.;
Franklin Sylva, Akamai Pumping Service;
Mike Morris, Nutrition and Physical Activity Coalition of Maui County; and
Tatiana-Malia Piena.

CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
Mr. Clerk.
DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK: Chairman, we have no further business scheduled for this
public hearing.
CHAIR MATEO: Members, we've completed our task in this public hearing for this evening.
This public hearing for April 25, 2012 is now adjourned.
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ADJOURNMENT
The public hearing of APRIL 25, 2012, was adjourned by the Chair at 8:03 p.m.

JE P EY . KUWADA, COUNTY CLERK
COUN OF MAUI, STATE OF HAWAII
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